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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF NEW YORK

"
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ;
; ECF Case
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: l 12 Civ.
v. !
4 ; COMPLAINT
FLEURCHEM, INC., - ; JUDGE RAMOS
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Plaintiff, the United States of America, by its attorney, Preet Bharara, United Sta}tes
Attorney for the Southern District of New York, alleges for its complaint upon information and
belief as follows:

INTRODUCTION

1. - The United States of America brings this civil enforcérhent action s_éeking
penalties and injunctive relief against Fleurchem, Inc. (“Fluerchem”), a Middletown, New York
chemical manufacturer and supplier, for repeatedly and knowingly failing to notify the Drug
Enfqrcement Administration (“DEA”) of the sale and exportation of certain potentially
dangerous chemicals such as methyl anthranilic acid, beﬁzaldeh};de, phenylacetic acid, gamma-

butyrolactone, and piperonal, to destinations in foreign couhtries———including Israel, Chile,



Australia, Canada, Germany, France, Singapore, Switzerland, Greece, and the Netherlands—and
for failing to maintain records regarding these sales and exports. These cheﬁlicals are regulated
by the DEA because they can be used to manufacture illegal drugs. Fleurchem’s acts violated
the Controlled Substances Act, as amended, 21 U.S.C. §§ 801 ef seq. (the “Act”) and its
implementing regulations, 21 C.F.R. §§ 1301 et seq.

JURISDICTION AND VENUE

2. This Court has jurisdiction over this action pursuant to 21 U.S.C. §§ 842, 961(1),
971(a) and 28 U.S.C. §§ 1345, 1355. .

3; Venue is proper in the Southern District of New York pursuaht to 21 U.S.C.
§§ 843(£)(2), and 28 U.S.C. §§ 1391(b) and 1395(a).

THE PARTIES

4. Plaintiff is the United States of America.

5. Fleurchem is a leading global manufacturer and s‘uppliér of ingredients for
ﬂav‘ors, fragrances, aroma therapy, foods, beverages, personal care products, and other such
products. Fleurchem is located at 33 Sprague Ave, in Middletown, New York, within this
District. Fleurchem manufactures and sells_, among other things, chemicals defined under the
Act as “List I chemicals,” pursuant to DEA registration number 006329FRZ. See 21 U.S.C; §
802, Definition 34 (“List I”); 21 C.F.R. § 1310.02.

REGULATORY BACKGROUND

6. List I chemicals may be used to provide a variety of flavorings or aromas in
household products (such as in carbonated cola beverages), but they can also be used to

manufacture illegal drugs such as methamphetamines.



7. List I chemicals are therefore regulated under the Act as chemicals that are used
in the manufacture of controlled substances and/or are important to the manufacture of those
substances. See “Contrplled Substances Act (the “Act™), 21 U.S.C. § 802, Definition 34 (“List I')
and 35 (“List 1I”); 21 CF.R. § 1310.02.

8. To combat the high potential for abuse of List I chemicals, the Act mandates strict
adherence to a nﬁmber of requirements by any person or entity that exports these chemicals. The
Act’s reporting requirements are triggered by the importation or exportation of List I chemicals
that meet or exceed the threshold quantities identified in 21 C.F.R. § 1310.04(f). Different
threshold quantities aré established for each List I chemical, as measured by a chemical’s base
weight in kilograms. Id.

9. Among the ;eporting requirements is a mandatory annual registration process
with DEA. Specifically, chemical companies, such as Fleurchem, that export List I chemicals
must register with the DEA—which is authorized to inspect the registrant’s establishment to
ensure compliance with the applicable rules and regulations. See 21 U.S.C. §§ 822(a)(1), (D).

10.  The Act further requires that regulated entities, such as Fleurchem; that import or
export a List I chemical “shall notify the Attorney Generall of the importation or exportation not
latér than 15 days befofe the transaction is to take place.” 21 U.S.C. §§ 971(a), 961(1); 21
C.F.R. § 1313.21(a). |

11. Additionaliy, DEA requires that a form, called “DEA Form 486” be provided to
DEA headquarters no later than 15 days prior to the exportation of listed chemicals that meet or
exceed the threshold quantities identified in 21 C.F.R. § 1310.04(f). See 21 C.F.R. § 1313.21(b);

also 21 U.S.C. § 971(d).



12.  Lastly, a registrant may be penalized for any failure to make, keep, or furnish any
record, report, notification, declaration, order or order form, statement, invoice or information
required under subchapters I or II of Chapter 13 of the Act, which includes DEA Form 486. See
21 U.S.C. §6 842(a)(5), 842(c)(1)(B).

13. | Under the Act, non—compliaﬁce with the notification requirements carries a
$25,000 fine per occurrehce, as well as potential injunctive remedies. See 21 U.S.C. §§ 971(a),
961(1); 843(f), 882(a). A failure to ﬁle a DEA Form 486 or keep proper records carrieé éper- |
violation penalty of $10,000, as well as potential injunctive remedies. See 21 U.S.C. §
842(c)(1)(B), 21 U.S.C. §§ 843(f), 882(a). |

14.  The Act specifies that the Attorney General may delegate any of his functions
under the Act “to any officer or employee of the Department of Justice.” 21 U.S.C. § 871. This
authority has been used to assign responsibility for the sections of the Act discussed in this
Complaint—including the registration process, oversight and control of List I éhemicals,. and the |
reporting requirements for List I chemicals—to the Administrator of the DEA. See 28 C.F.R. §

0.100.
FACTS
15 During the period June 2, 2010 to September 2, 2010, DEA agents conducted
inspections and audits of Fleurchem (the “Investigation”) into Fleurchem’s compliance with the
Act and its implementing regulations.

16, This Investigation was a follow up to a previous investigation DEA conducted in

2007, in which DEA documented at least 15 occasions when Fleurchem hgd failed to comply

with the requirements of the Act. On June 11, 2007, DEA sent Fleurchem a Letter of



Admonition, which documented these violations. On July 10, 2007, Fleurchem’s theh-CEO
acknowledged receipt of the Letfer of Admonition, resporiding that “[i]n [the] future DEA Form .
486 will be filed no later than 15 days prior [to] exportation.”

17.  Notwithstanding that assurance, on dozens of Qccasions between June 1, 2008 and
October 27, 2010, Fleurchem aéain exported List I chemicals without properly nétifying DEA.

18.  The Investigation further revealed that Fleurchem failed to alert DEA to the sale
and exportation of these listed chemicals through the provision of a DEA Form 486, at least 15
days before they were sold, as required by law.

19.  Among the DEA “‘Li.st I’ chemicals that Fleu‘rchem exported on ;chese dozens of
occasions were methyl anthranilic acid, Benzaldehyde, phenylacetic acid, gamma-butyrolactone,
and piperonal, to destinations in foreign countries including Israel, Chile, Australia, Canada,
Germany, France, Singapore, Switzerland, Greece, and the Netherlands.

20. In addition, on May 19, 2011, while the Investigation was on-going, DEA
discovered an additional violation that took pléce on or about April 15,2011, in which
Fleurchem failed to submit DEA Form 486 for the chemical heliotropin, whiAch is also known as
' éiperonal.

21.  Therefore, on dozens of occasions between June 1, 2008 and May 19, 2011,
Fleurchem féiled to alert the Attorney General of the United States, through DEA, to the sale and
exportation of List I chemicals through the provision of DEA Form 486, at least 15 days before
they were sold or exported.

22. On each of these occasions, the chemicals Fleurchem exported met or exceeded

the threshold quantities identified in 21 C.F.R. § 1310.04(f).



23.. On each of these occasions, Fleurchem’s failure to make, keep and/or furnish
DEA Form 486 within 15 days was an independent violation of the Act’s recordkeeping

requirements.

FIRST CAUSE OF ACTION
(Failure to Notify the Attorney General of the Exportation of List I Chemicals)

' 24, The United States incorporates by reference each and every allegation’in

Paragraphs 1-23 above. |

25. DEA’s Investigation revealed that, on dozens of occasions between June 1, 2008
and May 19, 2011, Fleurchem failed to notify the Attorney General of the United States that it
had exported List I chemicals in quantities that met or exceeded the threshold quantities
identified in 21 C.F.R. § 1310.04(f), 15 days before the exportation took place.

26.  The Attorney General has delegated responsibility for the Act to the DEA. See 28
C.FR. §0.100.

27.  Therefore, Fleurchem’s failure to notify the Attorney General, through the DEA,
that it exported List I chemicals in quéntities that met or exceeded the threshold quantities was in

violation of 21 U.S.C. §§ 971(a), 961(1) and 21 C.F.R. § 1313.21(a).

SECOND CAUSE OF ACTION
(Failure to Complete DEA Form 486 15 Days Prior to the Exportation of List I Chemicals)

28. The United States incorporates by reference each and every allegation in

Paragraphs 1-27 above.



29, DEA’s investigétion revealed that, on dozens of occasions between June 1, 2008
and May 19, 2011, Fleurchem failed to complete DEA Form 486 within 15 days prior to the
exportaﬁon of 1istéd chemicals that met or exceeded the threshold quantities identified in 21
CfF.R. § 1310.04().

30.  Fleurchem’s failure to comple‘cé DEA Form 486 was in violation of 21 C.F.R. §

1313.21(b) and 21 U.S.C. § 971(d).

THIRD CAUSE OF ACTION

(Failure to make, keep, or furnish records required
under subchapters I or IT of Chapter 13 of the Act)

1. The United States incorporates by reference each and every allegation in
Paragraphs 1-30 above. |

2. In response to requests by DEA agents during the Investigation, Fleurchem was
unable to demonstrate that it had provided DEA Form 486 at least 15 days prior to the
exportation of List I chemicals on the occasions discussed above between June 1, 2008 and May
19, 2011.

3. | Fleurchem’s failure to make, keep, or furnish any record, report, notiﬁdation; |
declaration, order or order form, statement, invoice or information required under subchapters I
or IT of Chapter 13 of the Act (to wit, DEA Form 486), violated 21 U.S.C. §§ 842(a)(5), and

842(c)(1)(B).



WHEREFORE, the United States demands judgment in its favor and against Fleurchem

as follows:

(a) for a maximum statutory penalty in the amount of $25,000 for each of the violations

discussed herein pursuant to 21 U.S.C. § 961(1);

(b) for appropriate injunctive relief pursuant to 21 U.S.C. §§ 882(a) and 843(f);

(c) for the costs of this action; and

(d) for such further relief as the Court may deem proper.

Dated: New York, New York
April 5,2012

PREET BHARARA

United States Attorney
Southern District of New York
Attorney for the United States

LOUIS A. PELLE
Assistant United States Attorney
86 Chambers Street, 3™ FI.

New York, New York 10007
Tel. (212) 637-2689

Fax (212) 637-2686
louis.pellegrino@usdoj.gov




